Public Document Pack
‘%‘",‘ Hampshire
&I County Council
NOTICE OF MEETING
Meeting Executive Member for Policy and Resources Decision Day
Date and Time Tuesday, 9th March, 2021 at 2.00 pm
Place Virtual MS Teams Meeting
Enquiries to members.services@hants.gov.uk
John Coughlan CBE
Chief Executive
The Castle, Winchester SO23 8UJ
FILMING AND BROADCAST NOTIFICATION
This meeting is being held remotely and will be recorded and broadcast live via the
County Council’s website.
AGENDA
DEPUTATIONS
To receive any deputations notified under Standing Order 12.

KEY DECISIONS (NON-EXEMPT/NON-CONFIDENTIAL)

1. ANNUAL CORE INFRASTRUCTURE GRANTS TO VOLUNTARY AND
COMMUNITY SECTOR ORGANISATIONS (Pages 3 - 12)

To consider a report of the Chief Executive seeking approval to the
allocation of funding to voluntary and community sector organisations for
2021/22.

NON KEY DECISIONS (NON-EXEMPT/NON-CONFIDENTIAL)

2.  MEMBER'S DEVOLVED BUDGETS - UPDATED PROTOCOL (Pages
13 - 22)

To consider a report of the Director of Transformation and Governance —
Corporate Services proposing updates and changes to Member’s
Devolved Budget Scheme.

KEY DECISIONS (EXEMPT/CONFIDENTIAL)

None

NON-KEY DECISIONS (EXEMPT/CONFIDENTIAL)



None

ABOUT THIS AGENDA:

On request, this agenda can be provided in alternative versions (such as
large print, Braille or audio) and in alternative languages.

ABOUT THIS MEETING:

The press and public are welcome to observe the public sessions of the
meeting via the webcast.



Agenda ltem 1

HAMPSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

Decision Report

Panel: Executive Member for Policy and Resources
Date: 9 March 2021
Title: Annual core infrastructure grants to Voluntary and

Community Sector Organisations

Report From: Assistant Chief Executive

Contact name:  Antonia Perkins, Senior Programme Lead

Tel: 0370 779 7390 Email: antonia.perkins@hants.gov.uk

Purpose of this Report
1. The purpose of this report is to:

e provide an update on the return on the County Council’s investment of
core infrastructure grant funding to both the Hampshire Councils for
the Voluntary Sector Network, via Community First Wessex, and
Citizens Advice Hampshire during 2020/21 to-date; and to

e recommend the allocation of ongoing funding for 2021/22.

Recommendation(s)

2. This report recommends that the Executive Member for Policy and
Resources:

e approves the allocation of £495,990 infrastructure grant funding for the
Hampshire Councils for Voluntary Sector Network, via Community
First Wessex for the year 2021/22; and

e approves the allocation of £63,000 infrastructure grant funding for
Citizens Advice Hampshire for the year 2021/22.

Contextual information

3. The County Council continues to recognise the vital contribution of the
voluntary and community sector (VCS) to delivering its Strategic Plan and, in

Page 3


mailto:antonia.perkins@hants.gov.uk
https://www.hants.gov.uk/aboutthecouncil/strategiesplansandpolicies/corporatestrategy

particular, preventing and managing demand for County Council services. To
support a vibrant and sustainable sector within Hampshire, the County
Council sees an ongoing role for effective local infrastructure organisations —
for example, in providing advice, building capacity, attracting funding,
supporting financial resilience, brokering partnerships and providing a
collective voice for, and single front door to, the sector.

The importance and value of the work delivered by the VCS in Hampshire has
been very visibly demonstrated during 2020/21, due to the essential role they
have played in directly helping residents throughout the COVID-19 pandemic,
as well as working with the County Council to ensure the most vulnerable
residents were supported during this unprecedented period.

In addition to specific funding for demand management or individual projects,
issued separately via departments, the County Council corporately supports
the vibrancy and sustainability of the VCS in Hampshire through infrastructure
support funding. Infrastructure support is concerned with:

¢ identifying needs and facilitating improvement in service provision across
the Sector — to promote efficiency and reduce duplication;

e assisting local organisations to function more effectively — so that they
successfully meet their charitable objectives and secure sustainability;

o facilitating effective communication, networking and collaboration amongst
local groups and communities, including by promoting and developing
voluntary action; and

e supporting local organisations to influence policies, plans and practices that
have an impact on their organisations and beneficiaries and, in so doing,
ensuring there is a strong voice for the Sector.

The County Council supports the infrastructure of Hampshire’s VCS through
funding to the Hampshire Councils for the Voluntary Sector (CVS) Network.
This comprises seven organisations which cover the whole of the county.
Community First is funded by the County Council as the single contracted
organisation. Community First then works in close partnership with the other
six CVSs, passing on funding and working with them to achieve specific
outcomes set out in the grant agreement.

The County Council also has a longstanding partnership with Citizens Advice
Hampshire (CitAH). CitAH delivers training and development to around 220
paid employees and 1,000 volunteers across 14 local Citizens Advice offices.
It also provides specialist advice lines on employment and welfare and
maintains a single point of contact between local Citizens Advice and wider
strategic partners.

Page 4



Performance

10.

11.

12.

Hampshire Councils for the Voluntary Sector Network

The County Council has had a close working relationship with the Hampshire
CVSs for some time, and they remain significant and highly valued partners.

The importance of these organisations to the wider VCS, and to Hampshire
residents, has been vividly demonstrated during the response phase of the
COVID-19 pandemic. The infrastructure funding has enabled the Hampshire
CVS network to work ‘hand in glove’ with the Authority and ensured the
coordination of the voluntary sector ‘effort’ across the county in support of
residents most in need.

The County Council’s infrastructure funding has enabled the Hampshire CVS
Network to:

e establish (in partnership with the County Council and district partners) the
District Local Response Centres to support individuals who were shielding
during the first wave of the pandemic;

e facilitate an increase in both formal and informal volunteering across
Hampshire’s communities, and with County Council services;

e engage with the County Council’'s welfare response to provide support
throughout the year for some of Hampshire’s most vulnerable residents;

e contribute to the Hampshire and Isle of Wight Local Resilience Forum as
active partners;

e provide support and guidance on the recovery/restart of voluntary and
community organisations forced to close during lockdown; and

e help the VCS secure over £1.2million in funding.

Appendix A provides headline figures on the impact of work delivered by the
Hampshire CVS Network, supported by the County Council’s infrastructure
funding.

Citizens Advice Hampshire

The County Council values the role that CitAH plays in enabling its local
services to continue to meet the needs of some of Hampshire’s most
vulnerable residents. This support has been vital in helping the Authority to
deliver its welfare response to the pandemic during the year.

Page 5



13.

During 2020/21, this funding has enabled CitAH to

e support 42,473 clients, addressing 123,805 issues (see appendix B);
o 34% of issues were related to benefit claims and universal credit);
o 34% of clients had either a disability or long-term health
condition and the greatest demand for support came from those
aged between 55 and 59;

e deliver an innovative pilot in partnership with the County Council to embed
a Citizens Advice Advisor within an Adults’ Health and Care mental health
and substance misuse team;

o facilitate at pace the establishment of a winter fuel voucher scheme for
families most in need, as part of the wider Connect4communities
programme; and

e engage with the County Council’'s welfare response to provide support
throughout the year for some of Hampshire’s most vulnerable residents.

2021/22 funding

14.

15.

16.

The voluntary sector has been a crucial partner to the County Council
throughout the pandemic, and their support to the residents of Hampshire has
been enabled by the ongoing provision of an infrastructure grant. Based on
evidence of impact to-date, it is proposed that core infrastructure grant
funding continues throughout the 2021/22 financial year

In recognition of the challenging financial context that the County Council is
operating within, the funding would be at the slightly lower amount of
£495,990 for the Hampshire CVS Network, and £63,000 for CitAH. This
equates to a 10% reduction in funding, which is in line with the budget
reduction for all County Council departments as part of the wider savings
programme. Officers have liaised with both partners at an early stage about
the anticipated reduction in funding for the coming year.

It is also proposed that both grants are allocated for the period of 2021/22.
This one-year allocation reflects the uncertain financial context in the which
the County Council is currently operating. As such, it is recommended that the
allocation of the infrastructure grant is reviewed on an annual basis.

Monitoring arrangements

17.

The County Council maintains ongoing, open dialogue with both the
Hampshire CVSs and CitAH regarding delivery against the agreed grant
purpose documents. This includes regular monitoring meetings between the

Page 6



Assistant Chief Executive and representative CEOs from the Hampshire
CVSs and the CEO of CitAH.

Conclusion

18. This report demonstrates that the Hampshire CVSs and CitAH continue to

19.

deliver a very positive return on the County Council’s investment. They play a
vital role in the provision of infrastructure support to Hampshire voluntary
sector organisations and local Citizens’ Advice services, which, in turn,
support some of Hampshire’s most vulnerable residents.

It is recommended that an infrastructure support grant be made to the
Hampshire CVS Network, via Community First Wessex, and to Citizens’
Advice Hampshire to enable them to continue this valued work.

Page 7



Appendix A: Headline information on the work of the Hampshire CVS
Network 2020/21 to date

2020-21 Year to Date - Headlines
(Figures in brackets show data captured during this period in 2019/20)
e £1,279,939 (£2,299,172) funding secured by Hampshire VCSE with CVS
suppart.
e 2787 (2,398) VCSE organisations have been supported by their local CVS
including:
o 274 (372) supported with governance and policy
o 268 (377) HR (paid staff and volunteers)
o 75 (44) new groups developed
e 490 (1,142) Volunteers have been placed into local VCSE organisations
» 195 (260) training sessions delivered to 2,920 (2,472) learners

Covid 19 Response Infrastructure Support Headlines to date
» 186 new voluntary groups spontaneously developed across Hampshire to support
their communities
» 75 response groups developed with CVS support
e 4,178 new volunteers enrolled to support the response
o 1,846 volunteers signposted into responding community groups
o 2,488 volunteers support a direct CVS response

Page 8



Appendix B: Information on the demographics of Citizens Advice clients in
Hampshire and nature of issues based on known client profiles 2020/21 to date

Part 1 issues % et & x| -
Bonetts Unwersal Croot [ '+ 254
—
Financial services & capa _ 13,580
-
o=
Retatonships & family _ 8433
Other - 5,541
Legal [ 4368
Consumer goods & servi -4.029
Health & community care - 2,708
Immigration & asylum . 1,788
Utilities & communications . 1736
Travel & transport . 1,499
Discrimination & Hate & . 1332

Tax [ 782
Education |407
oK 5K 10K 15K 20K 25K
Issues all

I Benefits & tax credits M Discrimination & Hate & GVA [l Health & community care Other B Utilities & communications
M Benefits Universal Credit B Education I Housing M Reiationships & family
B Consumer goods & services Employment B Immigration & asylum B Tax
B Debt B Financial services & capability ' Legal B Travel & transport
Gender Age

15-19

20-24 I

58 25-29 I

M Female I Prefer different .. 45-49 I
H Male e —

Disabled / Long term health condition 2074 EE——
75-79 .
80-84 N
6% 66% 85-89 Il
90-94 1
95-99
100-104
M Disabled M Not disabled/no health problems 0% 2% 4% 6% 8% 10% 12%

M Long-Term Health Condition

Type of disability (% of disabled clients)

I Speech Impairment I Hard of hearing
Mental Health I Deaf
Bl Physical Impairment (non-sensory) I Cognitive Impairment

M Other Disability or Type Not Given
B Multiple Impairments

B Learning Difficulty

B Visual Impairment

Page 9



CORPORATE OR LEGAL INFORMATION:

Links to the Strategic Plan

Hampshire maintains strong and sustainable economic | Yes
growth and prosperity:

People in Hampshire live safe, healthy and independent | Yes
lives:

People in Hampshire enjoy a rich and diverse Yes
environment:
People in Hampshire enjoy being part of strong, Yes

inclusive communities:

Section 100 D - Local Government Act 1972 - background documents

The following documents discuss facts or matters on which this report, or an
important part of it, is based and have been relied upon to a material extent in
the preparation of this report. (NB: the list excludes published works and any
documents which disclose exempt or confidential information as defined in
the Act.)

Document Location
None

Page 10




1.

IMPACT ASSESSMENTS:

Equality Duty

The County Council has a duty under Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010
(‘the Act’) to have due regard in the exercise of its functions to the need to:

Eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimisation and any other

conduct prohibited under the Act;

Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant

protected characteristic (age, disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy and
maternity, race, religion or belief, gender and sexual orientation) and those who
do not share it;

Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected

characteristic and persons who do not share it.

Due regard in this context involves having due regard in particular to:

a)

b)

The need to remove or minimise disadvantages suffered by persons sharing a
relevant characteristic connected to that characteristic;

Take steps to meet the needs of persons sharing a relevant protected
characteristic different from the needs of persons who do not share it;

Encourage persons sharing a relevant protected characteristic to participate in
public life or in any other activity which participation by such persons is
disproportionally low.

Equalities Impact Assessment:

The purpose of the County Council’s financial support to voluntary sector
infrastructure organisations is to ensure that groups and organisations are
helped to develop their effectiveness, particularly in supporting vulnerable
groups. Core grant funding also promotes individual voluntary action to
benefit vulnerable people, including those who participate and those who
receive help as a result of that activity.

The health of the sector and level of voluntary action is fundamental to the
wellbeing of residents including the most vulnerable and consequently to the
demand on public services. For this reason, this report recommends grant
funding remains at a consistent level.

The Assistant Chief Executive will work closely with the Chief Executive of
Citizens Advice Hampshire and the Chief Executives of the Hampshire CVS
Network to ensure that the revised grant purpose documents continue to be
directed towards supporting vulnerable communities.

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 2

HAMPSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

Decision Report

Decision Maker Executive Member for Policy and Resources

Date: 9 March 2021

Title: Member's Devolved Budgets-updated Protocol

Report From: Director of Transformation and Governance — Corporate
Services

Contact name: Barbara Beardwell

Tel: 03707 793751 Email: barbara.beardwell@hants.gov.uk

Purpose of this Report

1. The purpose of this Report is to propose updates and changes to the
Member’s Devolved Budget Scheme including clarifying the position when
Members have a conflict of interest or are unable to act for any reason.

Recommendation

2. That the updated Protocol for the Governance of the Member’s Devolved
Budget Scheme set out in Appendix 1 is approved.

Executive Summary

3. This Report seeks to succinctly outline the history of the scheme, the reasons
why changes are proposed to the Protocol and to explain the proposed
changes.

Contextual information

4. The Member’s Devolved Budget Scheme was established in May 2007
following reports to Cabinet on 21 May 2007 and to Full Council on 24 May
2007.

5. The scheme was updated on 28 June 2013 and on 9 April 2015 following
reports to the Executive Member for Policy and Resources when, in the light
of the practical experience gained in operating the scheme, the eligibility
criteria were amended to give Members greater flexibility to support a wider
range of applicants and to allow grants to support revenue funded activities in

Page 13


mailto:barbara.beardwell@hants.gov.uk

limited circumstances. The aim being to ensure that the maximum possible
community benefit could be derived from the scheme.

For legal reasons, the authority to make the final decision on the award of a
grant under this scheme is currently delegated to the Director of
Transformation and Governance. It is however clearly established that
individual Members are responsible for checking the eligibility of applicants
and the compliance with the protocol before recommending grants for
approval.

It is now proposed to further amend the Scheme to:

clarify the position where a Member has a conflict of interest;

clarify the position where a Member is unable to act due to iliness or
incapacity or where a seat for a Division becomes vacant for whatever
reason;

to update the reference to the County Council’s Corporate Priorities;

add a requirement for Members to consider the County Council’s Climate
Change Priorities when considering grants, and to;

clarify that a Member’s grant allocation must be spent in the budget year,
meaning that no grant budget can be carried forward to a subsequent year.

The New Protocol

7.

The new Protocol follows the form of the Protocol established in 2007 and
amended in 2013 and 2015. It is not therefore proposed to rehearse the
basic structure of the scheme in this Report but rather to highlight, as in
paragraph 7 above, where the new Protocol differs from the Protocol
approved in 2015.

Page 14



REQUIRED CORPORATE AND LEGAL INFORMATION:

Links to the Strategic Plan

Hampshire maintains strong and sustainable economic | yes
growth and prosperity:

People in Hampshire live safe, healthy and independent | yes
lives:

People in Hampshire enjoy a rich and diverse yes
environment:
People in Hampshire enjoy being part of strong, yes

inclusive communities:

Other Significant Links

Links to previous Member decisions:

Title Date
Devolved Budgets to Members (Cabinet) 21 May 2007
Devolved Budgets to Members (Full Council) 24 May 2007
Member’s Devolved Budget Update 28 June 2013
Member's Devolved Budgets-updated Protocol 9 April 2015

Direct links to specific legislation or Government Directives

Title Date

Section 100 D - Local Government Act 1972 - background documents

The following documents discuss facts or matters on which this report, or an
important part of it, is based and have been relied upon to a material extent in
the preparation of this report. (NB: the list excludes published works and any
documents which disclose exempt or confidential information as defined in
the Act.)

Document Location
None

Page 15




1.

EQUALITIES IMPACT ASSESSMENT:

Equality Duty

The County Council has a duty under Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010
(‘the Act’) to have due regard in the exercise of its functions to the need to:

Eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimisation and any other
conduct prohibited by or under the Act with regard to the protected
characteristics as set out in section 4 of the Act (age, disability, gender
reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and maternity,
race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation);

Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant
protected characteristic within section 149(7) of the Act (age, disability,
gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex
and sexual orientation) and those who do not share it;

Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic within section 149(7) of the Act (see above) and persons who
do not share it.

Due regard in this context involves having due regard in particular to:

The need to remove or minimise disadvantages suffered by persons
sharing a relevant protected characteristic that are connected to that
characteristic;

Take steps to meet the needs of persons sharing a relevant protected
characteristic that are different from the needs of persons who do not share
it;

Encourage persons sharing a relevant protected characteristic to

participate in public life or in any other activity in which participation by such
persons is disproportionally low.

Equalities Impact Assessment:

No equality impacts have been identified as a result of the recommendation in
this Report.

Page 16



Protocol for Individual Budgets for Members of Hampshire County Council
Introduction

Each Member will receive an annual budget, to be allocated to local projects,
initiatives or organisations in their Division. Legitimate groups and organisations,
but not individuals, will be able to apply to their local Member for a grant. A
legitimate organisation is one which has its own bank account, and which can
demonstrate that it has at least one of the following:

e where relevant, independently verified statements of account or at least, a
formal letter from an independent person with the requisite ability and
practical experience to carry out a competent examination of the accounts,

e a published statement of its objectives,

e a committee or board of governors or trustees and

¢ minuted meetings and an annual general meeting.

What type of projects/initiatives are covered by the scheme?

Groups and organisations can apply for funding for both revenue (one-off) and
minor capital projects. Revenue grants should generally be used to support short
term project related costs e.g. a time limited activity group for children. General
revenue funding to pay for the running costs of the core service or function of an
applicant organisation should only be grant funded after particularly careful
consideration of the application and where the Member supporting the grant is
satisfied that:

e the applicant organisation is not a statutory body e.g. a Council, a school or
an NHS body,

e the revenue support required is generally regarded as ‘one off’,

e the applicant organisation has a viable plan to balance its budget in future
years and

e the applicant organisation will remain viable and in existence for the financial
year in question.

It is expected that the grants will benefit a wide range of groups/activities: for
example, vulnerable children or adults, young people, facilities for older people,
community facilities, parish councils (but only for specific projects), schools’ minor
traffic or safety works, local environment projects, and community safety.

How will applications be judged?

Applicants for grants must demonstrate that their project or initiative contributes to
one or more of The County Council's Corporate Priorities

Page 17


https://documents.hants.gov.uk/corporate/ServingHampshireStrategicPlan2017-2021.pdf

Who can apply?

Applications can be made by a wide variety of organisations and groups located
within the administrative County of Hampshire, but the organisation or group must
have a bank account, and (for grants over £5,000) provide a set of accounts and,
where relevant, details of the organisation’s child/adults safeguarding policy.
Applications from religious groups may be considered, but the application must
show that the project will bring wider community benefit. Applications from
Community schools, Academies, District, Borough or City Council’s, National Park
Authorities, the Police, the Fire Service and the NHS may also be considered but
only when the applicant can demonstrate that the grant will support an additional
community benefit and will not be used to supplement the core services or functions
of that organisation. Applications from such organisations will usually be received
from a fundraising arm, such as a school’s Parent Teacher Association (PTA). A list
of organisations that would be generally eligible is attached at Appendix 2.

Who can’t apply?

Applications will not be accepted from individuals (e.g. for personal sponsorship) or
from political parties or groups affiliated with a political party or from lobbying
organisations. A list of organisations that would generally not be eligible is attached
at Appendix 2.

The approval process

Organisations/groups applying for a grant must complete the appropriate
application form, using the electronic application process:

http://www3.hants.gov.uk/grants.htm

The Local Member is responsible for checking the eligibility of the applicant and the
suitability of the grant applied for, noting whether funding is being provided from
elsewhere in the County Council already. Individual Members will agree which
applications they wish to support and it is the responsibility of the Member to advise
applicants of the outcome of their grant application.

When deciding whether or not to recommend a grant for approval, Members must
give due regard the public sector Equality duty by consciously thinking about the
need to:

e eliminate unlawful discrimination including harassment, victimisation and
any other conduct prohibited by the Equality Act 2010,

e advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected
characteristic and people who do not share it and

o foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic
and people who do not share it.

As part of the decision-making process, protected characteristics are —

Page 18


http://www3.hants.gov.uk/grants.htm

age, disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, race
(including ethic or national origins, colour or nationality), religion or belief,
sex and sexual orientation.

When considering whether or not to recommend a grant for approval, Members
should also have regard to the County Council’'s Climate Change Strategy and in
particular the agreed targets for Hampshire of carbon neutrality by 2050 and of
developing resilience to a 2c rise in temperatures.

The County Council’s current executive arrangements do not make provision for
non-executive Members to authorise expenditure. Therefore, the final decision on
whether a grant is awarded (after it has gone through a checking process) will be
made at Officer level based on the recommendation of the Member.

Conflicts of Interest

The County Council's Code of Conduct for Members must be adhered to by
Members when deciding which grants to recommend for approval. Members must
declare any Personal Interest (including full details of the nature of any such
interest) to the Leader of the Council and the relevant Democratic Services Officer
in a grant application, so that the Officer approving the grant is aware of that
interest. If a Member has a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest (DPI) in any matter under
consideration, or a Personal Interest where a decision in relation to it might
reasonably be regarded as affecting the wellbeing or financial position of the
Member, his family or person with which the Member has a close association more
than other council tax payers, ratepayers or inhabitants of the County Council’s
administrative area, the Member should take no further part in the matter, other
than to:

e stipulate the maximum budget available for the grant,

¢ inform the applicant that due to a conflict of interest the matter is being
referred to another Member for consideration; and

o refer the matter to the Leader of the Council who shall depute consideration
of the grant application to another named Member who, after being fully
briefed by the Democratic Services Officer on the relevant interest, will
consider the application and recommend it for approval or refusal in the
normal way.

If the application is approved, the expenditure will be drawn from the budget of the
Member to whom the application was first directed.

lliness or other Absence of Member

In the event that a Member is not able to deal with grant applications as a result of
illness or incapacity, or if a Member’s seat falls vacant for any reason then the
Leader of the County Council shall nominate another Member of the County Council
to consider and make recommendations in relation to grant applications from that
Member’s division until such time as the Member is fit to resume duties or the vacant
seat is filled.

Page 19


https://www.hants.gov.uk/landplanningandenvironment/environment/climatechange/whatarewedoing/climatechangestrategy
https://democracy.hants.gov.uk/documents/s10576/Part%204%20-%20Appendix%20A%20-%20Code%20of%20conduct%20for%20Members%20-%20November%202017_HF000015280094.pdf

Timetable

The opening date for the scheme is normally 1 June and the deadline for submitting
grant requests to the Director of Policy and Governance is the 28 February in each
financial year.

Financial issues

The minimum grant payable is £100. There is no maximum threshold, but a Member
may not overspend the individual grant budget allocated to them by the County
Council.

Members are encouraged to fully utilise their annual grant allocation in the
financial year in question. Unspent budget allocations cannot be carried forward.

Grant payments will be one-off, and there should be no expectation of future
funding. The grants are expected to support projects and not to contribute to an
organisation's general revenue costs, other than revenue costs supporting projects
and in the circumstances referred to above. Annually recurring costs should
generally not be supported.

The scheme may be used to facilitate match funding from other organisations, but
match funding is in no way a requirement.

The County Council is not able to undertake feasibility work to assess the merits of
an initiative/project, nor to assist applicants in making their bid beyond advising on
the application process.

Publicity

The scheme will be published, e.g. on the County Council's website, but support
from the County Council's Corporate Communications Team will not be available to
publicise individual Members' grants. Members must deal with all correspondence
and media comment that arises from their grants and fully recognise with the media
and others that the grant has been provided by the County Council in furtherance
of the County Council's priorities.

Administration of the scheme

Funding recommended by Members will be processed and payments made by the
Corporate Resources Department.

Audit and reporting

The scheme will be subject to scrutiny in the same way as any other County Council
budget would be. Members must therefore retain all original documents including
application forms and correspondence for six years from the end of the current
financial year for future reference by either internal or external audit. In the event
that a Member ceases to be a Member of the County Council during that period

Page 20



then all records held by that Member relating to member grants should be returned
to the County Council for safekeeping.

All successful applicants will be expected to report, to the Member who approved
the grant, on how the money was spent, either in the form of a letter or by providing
a set of accounts which shows details of the expenditure.

Details of qualifying grants awarded will be recorded and published as an Executive
Decision made by an Officer in accordance with Access to Information
requirements.

Page 21



APPENDIX 2

Examples of Generally Eligible Organisations (as may be amended from time

to time)

This is not intended to be an exhaustive list - other organisations who seek
to serve the people of Hampshire may well qualify, if they satisfy the Council's
priorities.

Parish Councils (for specific projects only)

Scout, guide, boys and girls brigade local organisations

Religious groups (where the project will bring wider community benefit)
Shopmobility (local)

Citizens' Advice Bureau (local)

Riding for the disabled (local)

Village or community hall associations

Age Concern, Mencap

British Legion, Services' benevolent societies

Parent teacher associations (formally constituted)

Organisations promoting the locality

Nursery education groups

Community Schools, Academies, District, Borough or City Council’s,
National Park Authorities, the Police, the Fire Service and the NHS (when
the applicant can demonstrate that the grant will support an additional
community benefit and will not be used to supplement the core services or
functions of that organisation)

Examples of Organisations that are not Eligible (as may be amended from

time to time)

Any political party

Any organisation with political aims

Any campaigning group (CPRE, Friends of the Earth, etc)

Any organisation that raises funds nationally - for national distribution (unless
the applicant can demonstrate that the funds will be applied locally)

Any pressure group formed solely for one issue

Any group formed to oppose any proposed/likely County Council policy

Page 22



	Agenda
	1 Annual Core Infrastructure Grants to Voluntary and Community Sector Organisations
	2 Member's Devolved Budgets - updated Protocol

